
GERMANTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NOTICE OF BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING 

 

Germantown High School 

Performing Arts Center 

W180 N11501 River Lane 

Germantown, WI 53022 

July 18, 2022 

7:00 p.m. 

AGENDA 

 

The Germantown School District Board of Education will hold its Board Meeting at the District 

PAC. As with past Board Meetings it will be recorded and provided for public viewing as soon as 

possible following the meeting. A link to the webcast will be available just prior to the scheduled 

meeting and can be located at https://www.gsdwi.org 

 

I. Meeting Called to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

A. Official Meeting Notification 

B. Roll Call 

 

II. Approval of Agenda 

 

III. Reports 

A. None 

 

IV. Citizen Comments: Community members/residents of the Germantown School District 

are invited to share their questions, comments, or concerns with the School Board. 

When speaking, citizens should state their name and address for the record. The 

presentation time frame shall be determined by the Board President, once an indication 

of the number of people wishing to speak is made. Speakers should keep comments to 

three minutes or less to allow for others to speak. Wisconsin law authorizes the school 

board to receive information from members of the public. Where possible, the Board 

may answer factual questions immediately or may provide a written response if 

information is not available. If a response would involve discussion of Board Policy 

or decisions which might be of interest to citizens not present at the meeting, the Board 

may place the item on a future meeting agenda. Comments that may be injurious to 

school district personnel or other individuals will not be allowed. 

 

V. Approval of Minutes 

A. June 27, 2022 Closed Session 

B. June 27, 2022 Board of Education 

 

VI. Teaching & Learning Committee 

A. July Committee Meeting Update 

https://www.gsdwi.org/


B. Discussion and action to approve 2022-2023 Academic Standards 

 

VII. Finance Committee 

A.  July 18, 2022 Committee meeting update 

B.  Discussion and action to approve 2022-2023 Preliminary Budget 

C.  Discussion and action to approve Food & Nutrition Vehicle Purchase 

D.  Discussion and action to approve 2022-2023 Germantown School District Paper 

Supply 

 

VIII. Insurance Committee 

A. July 18, 2022 Committee meeting update. 

B. Discussion and action to approve Self-Funded Insurance 

 

IX. New Business 

A. Discussion and action to approve 2022-2023 Student & Athletic/Activities 

Handbook 

B. Discussion and action to approve 2022-2023 Board of Education Meeting 

Schedule Revision 

C. Discussion and Action Regarding School Safety 

D. Discussion and action to approve 2022-2023 Teacher Resignations 

E. Discussion and action to approve 2022-2023 Teacher Contracts 

F. Discussion and action to approve Donations 

 

X. Closed Session 

The Board of Education will entertain a motion to go into closed session, if needed 

pursuant to Section 19.85(1)(f) to consider financial, medical, social or personal histories 

or disciplinary data of specific persons, preliminary considerations of specific personnel 

problems or the investigation of charges against specific persons except where par. (b) 

applies, which if discussed in public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect 

upon the reputation of any person referred to in such histories, or data, or involved in 

such problems or investigations. The Board may take action in closed session, if 

necessary or appropriate or entertain a motion to reconvene into open session to take 

further action, if necessary and appropriate, and/or to entertain a motion to adjourn the 

meeting. 

 

XI. Adjourn 



GERMANTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

GERMANTOWN, WISCONSIN 53022 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION 

June 27, 2022 

 

1. The meeting of the Board of Education was called to order by Board President Brian 

Medved in the High School Performing Arts Center at 7:00 p.m. with the Pledge of 

Allegiance. Roll call: Medved – yes, Barney – yes, Reinemann – yes, Soderberg – yes, 

Loth – absent excused, Ewert – virtual, Pawlak – yes. 

 

2. Superintendent Brett Stousland read the official meeting notification. 

 

3. Motion by Reinemann, second by Pawlak to approve the agenda with a slight change to 

move VI. E. to X. J. on the agenda. Motion carried. 

 

4. Board members Medved, Soderberg, Barney and Reinemann spoke about their 

experiences of the graduation ceremony.   

 

5. Superintendent Stousland led discussions regarding the 2022 GHS graduates.  Reuter 

continued discussions mentioning what Smith would be reporting on.  David Smith, GHS 

Dean of Students, gave a report to the Board on the 2022 GHS graduates in regards to 

academic skills, career skills, life skills, engagement with families, graduate profile, and 

company partnerships. 

 

6. Soderberg led discussions on school security topics that he is passionate about and items 

that he feels that the Board needs to consider, along with discussions with law makers to 

consider changes and areas that we can improve upon, with continued Board discussion.      

 

7. During citizen comments, GEA representative James Cannestra addressed the Board 

asking if they had any questions for him, letting them know to reach out if they did and 

he would provide answers.  Medved took this time to recognize Michael Loth and Tom 

Barney for 10 years of service to the district. 

 

8. Motion by Reinemann, second by Soderberg to approve the May 9, 2022 Closed Session, 

May 23, 2022 Board of Education, May 23, 2022 Closed Session, May 26, 2022 Closed 

Session, May 31, 2022 Closed Session, June 13, 2022 Closed Session, and June 13, 2022 

Closed Session minutes. Motion carried. 

 

9. Reinemann led discussions updating the Board from the June 13, 2022 Personnel 

Committee meeting.   

 

10. Motion to the full Board with a positive recommendation from the Personnel Committee 

to modify the insurance eligibility for part time teachers from .5 FTE to .75 FTE 

beginning in the 2022-2023 school year.  It does not require a second.  Board discussion.  

Motion carried. 

 

11. Motion to the full Board with a positive recommendation from the Personnel Committee 

for the elimination of hourly pay for mentees for their involvement in the Mentor 

Program for new teachers.  It does not require a second.  Motion carried. 

 



12. Motion to the full Board with a positive recommendation from the Personnel Committee 

to reduce the cash in lieu amount for eligible employees from $4,100 to $3,700 beginning 

in August of 2022.  It does not require a second.  Motion carried.   

 

13. Barney led discussions updating the Board from the June 13, 2022 Finance Committee 

meeting.  Altendorf came forward to discuss the resolution before the Board, mentioning 

that it is required to come directly to the Board, and that is why it is not coming from the 

Finance Committee with a positive recommendation.  Motion by Barney, second by 

Pawlak to approve the RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A TAXABLE TAX AND 

REVENUE ANTICIPATION PROMISSORY NOTE FOR CASH FLOW PURPOSES 

IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $4,100,000.  Motion carried. 

 

14. Motion to the full Board with a positive recommendation from the Finance Committee to 

use up to $57,167.57 of the ESSER III Part A allocation for UV lighting.  It does not 

require a second.  Motion carried. 

 

15. Motion to the full Board with a positive recommendation from the Finance Committee to 

approve the CESA #1 contract amendments for the 2021-2022 school year. It does not 

require a second. Motion carried.   

 

16. Ewert led discussions updating the Board from the June 13, 2022 Teaching & Learning 

Committee meeting.  Reuter continued with brief discussions.  

 

17. Barney led discussions updating the Board from the June 27, 2022 Insurance Committee 

meeting stating that USI had given an update at the meeting, that USI has narrowed the 

candidates, that the Business Office should not have to hire additional staff in order to do 

the claims processing, and that any savings that we see cannot be reallocated to 

somewhere else for at least the first three years to build reserves. USI should have a 

recommendation ready by next month to bring to the Committee and then the Committee 

to the Board. 

 

18. Director of Human Resources, Mike Nowak led discussions on the teacher contracts. 

Motion by Reinemann, second by Barney to approve the 1.0 FTE regular contract for 

Chris Timm at $62,500 and the part time contract for Susan Otto at $26,800.  Motion 

carried. 

 

19. Director of Teaching and Learning, Chris Reuter led discussions on the Director of 

Teaching & Learning position, describing the process in choosing the candidate. Motion 

by Ewert, second by Pawlak to approve the hire of Jake Misiak as the Director of 

Teaching and Learning for the Germantown School District and provide him with a two-

year contract for the 2022-2023 and 2023-2024 school years.  The salary for the 2022-

2023 school year will be $128,000.  Friendly amendment that his first year will be 

prorated, with July 14, 2022 being his first contracted day. Motion carried. 

 

20. Director of Teaching and Learning, Chris Reuter led discussions on the contract for the 

Germantown High School Assistant Principal position.  Motion by Reinemann, second 

 

21. by Soderberg to approve the hire of David Smith as Assistant Principal at Germantown 

High School and provide him with a two-year contract for the 2022-2023 and 2023-2024 

school years.  The salary for the 2022-2023 school year will be $88,000. Motion carried. 

 



22. Director of Human Resources, Mike Nowak led discussions on the final 2022-2023 

Professional & Technical, Support Staff, and Administration wage adjustments.  Motion 

by Soderberg, second by Reinemann to approve a 3% pay rate increase as presented for 

the 2022-2023 year effective July 1, 2022.  Motion carried, Soderberg-yes, Medved-yes, 

Reinemann-yes, Ewert-yes, Barney-abstained, Pawlak-yes 

 

23. Director of Technology, Justin Baumgartner led discussions on the resolution.  Motion by 

Pawlak, second by Reinemann to approve RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND 

APPROVING EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE E TO THE MASTER LEASE AGREEMENT 

NO. 2016199117 WITH AMERICAN CAPITAL FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. AND 

RATIFYING ALL PRIOR SCHOOL DISTRICT ACTION RELATING TO THE 

AUTHORIZATION OF THE MASTER LEASE AGREEMENT AND EQUIPMENT 

SCHEDULE. Motion carried. 

 

24. Director of Human Resources, Mike Nowak led discussions, with Pupil Services, Todd 

Lamb continuing discussions on the coordinator positions being brought to the Board. 

Motion by Reinemann, second by Barney to approve the posting and filling of a 1.0 FTE 

Pupil Services Coordinator position and a 1.0 FTE Special Education Coordinator 

position beginning with the 2022-2023 school year.  Board discussion.  Motion carried. 

 

25. Director of Pupil Services, Todd Lamb led discussions on the IEP Diagnostic contracts.  

Motion by Reinemann, second by Soderberg to approve the contracts as presented. Board 

discussion. Motion carried. 

 

26. Director of Pupil Services, Todd Lamb led discussions on the Extended School Year 

contracts. Motion by Soderberg, second by Pawlak, to approve the contracts as presented. 

Motion carried. 

 

27. Superintendent Stousland led discussions by stating the donors and donations given. 

Motion by Soderberg, second by Reinemann to thank the donors for their generosity and 

approve the donations as listed. Motion carried. 

 

28. Director of Human Resources, Mike Nowak led discussions on Supplemental contracts.  

Motion by Reinemann, second by Barney to approve the 2022-2023 Supplemental 

Teacher contracts as presented.  Motion carried. 

 

29. Motion by Reinemann, second by Pawlak to adjourn. Board members thanked Dr. 

Stousland for his time here, and everything he has done in the short period of time in 

Germantown. Motion carried. 

 

30. The Board adjourned at 8:08 p.m. 

 

Billie Jo Mohn 

Recording Secretary                Thomas Barney 

                                                                                    School Board Clerk 



GERMANTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

TO:  Board of Education   TOPIC: Annual Standards Adoption 

 

FROM: Jake Misiak    BOARD MEETING: July 18, 2022  

 

       AGENDA ITEM:   VI. B.  

 

Background: 

Under section 120.12(13) of the state statutes, as created by 2015 Wisconsin ACT 55, each 

school district must annually notify parents and guardians of the academic standards that the 

school board has adopted pursuant to section 118.30(1a)(a)1 and that will be in effect for the 

current school year. The specific content areas that must be addressed within this annual notice 

are mathematics, science, reading and writing, geography, and history. According to the statute, 

the annual parent notice of academic standards must be issued prior to the beginning of the 

year’s school term. The statute also states that the district may provide the notice electronically, 

including by posting the notice or a link to the specific academic standards on the school 

district’s website. The Germantown School Board has an annual requirement to adopt academic 

standards in the areas of literacy, math, geography, history and science.  

 

Attachments 

● NOTICE OF THE STUDENT ACADEMIC STANDARDS THAT ARE IN EFFECT 

FOR THE 2022-2023 SCHOOL YEAR 

 

Recommendation: 

Adopt the Wisconsin Academic Standards in the areas of literacy, math, social studies and 

science K-12 . 

 

A board member should read the motion as written directly below: 

 

I move to approve the proposed “NOTICE OF THE STUDENT ACADEMIC STANDARDS 

THAT ARE IN EFFECT FOR THE 2022-2023 SCHOOL YEAR”, as said proposed notice was 

presented to the Board in written form, with a date of July, 18 2022, in the Board’s packet of 

supplemental materials for this meeting, all pursuant to section 120.12(13)(b) and section 

118.30(1g)(a) of the state statutes. 

 

AND  

 

I move that the Board direct the administration to provide parents and guardians of the 

Germantown School District with notice of the Board-adopted student academic standards that 

are in effect for the 2022-2023 school year on the school districts website. 



NOTICE OF THE STUDENT ACADEMIC STANDARDS THAT ARE IN EFFECT FOR THE 

2022-2023 SCHOOL YEAR 

 

The Germantown School District is committed to using benchmarked and rigorous academic 

standards, which set high expectations for student learning and prepare students for college and 

career goals.  

 

The Germantown School District has established, shared with the Board of Education, and 

implemented a PreK-12 curriculum based on Germantown School Board’s adopted standards. 

The Wisconsin Academic Standards found in Section III of each standard document serve as the 

foundation for each subject area. It is the goal of the Germantown School District to exceed these 

standards through the implementation of a rigorous curriculum. In addition to this year’s annual 

adoption, you will see a link to the standards for each given discipline.  

 

Academic standards specify what students should know and be able to do in the classroom. They 

serve as goals for teaching and learning. Setting high standards enables students, parents, 

educators, and citizens to know what students should have learned at a given point in time. We 

must ensure that all children have equal access to high-quality education programs. Clear 

statements about what students must know and do are essential in making sure our schools offer 

opportunities to get the knowledge and skills necessary for success beyond the classroom. 

Academic standards are utilized daily through our adopted curriculums that align daily lessons to 

the standards identified in this report.  

 

Below you will find links to the Germantown School District’s standards to educate the children 

of Germantown. Students, parents, and community members can see the adopted district 

standards and associated curriculum information through the school district website at 

https://www.gsdwi.org/page/curriculum. 

 

PreK-12 Academic Standards: 

Academic Area Standards Adopted  (Links to the standards lists are in blue) 

K-12 ELA 

(Reading & 

Writing) 

Wisconsin Standards for English Language Arts K-12  

Pg 16 - 67 of source document Wisconsin Standards for English and 

Language Arts K-12 

K-12 Math Wisconsin Standards for Mathematics  

Pg 17 - 190 of source document Wisconsin Standards for Mathematics 

K-12 Science Wisconsin Standards for Science 

Pg 18 - 109 source document Wisconsin Standards for Science 

K-12 Socials 

Studies 

Wisconsin Standards for Social Studies 

Pg 16 - 55 of source document Wisconsin Standards for Social Studies 

https://www.gsdwi.org/page/curriculum
https://drive.google.com/file/d/10QdW1aHq4PXa6K8spoMTEsNO4SHEWEDT/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1D5Zv0QT8FQJCT1gyuSYW6LZ0Kzhx-vlW/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1gwg5YSvCSrBOePWKp-inVTq12zvmc__y/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1pz43C6Q5SAnvuFugQM7Hq27N6S-WWxFN/view?usp=sharing


GERMANTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 

 
TO:   Board of Education TOPIC:   2022-2023 Preliminary Budget 
 
FROM:  Brittany Altendorf BOE MEETING:  July 18, 2022 
    
DATE:  July 12, 2022 AGENDA ITEM: VII. B. 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The process of building the 2022-2023 budget starts in January of 2022 and concludes in October 
2022 at the Annual Meeting and Budget Hearing. Some of the unknown items such as student 
enrollment, staff needs and wages, open enrollment counts, voucher students, state aid, grant 
allocations, and insurance rates will not be known until the fiscal year has begun. Expenses 
increase annually at a higher rate than the state revenue limit so districts are expected to regulate 
their expenses and revenues to create a balanced budget.  Tonight, the board of education will be 
presented a preliminary budget for approval.  The approval of the budget, even though it is 
preliminary, allows the district to continue business until the final budget is approved and the levy 
is set in October.  The district is projected to see a slight increase in revenue over the 2021-2022 
fiscal year.  Even with the increase in revenue a reduction in expenses was needed to balance the 
budget after wage adjustments, contract adjustments, and the implantation of a 4k program was 
added. Below are the current assumptions used in the 2022-2023 budget that is being presented 
to the committee and the board this evening. Please note that these assumptions will be finalized 
prior to the October 24, 2022 Annual Meeting and Budget Hearing. 
 
 
07/18/2022 Assumptions: 
Student Enrollment    Increase of 174 students (118 FTE) 
State Aid     16.34% Increase  
Revenue Limit Per Member Adj  Flat 
Health & Dental     0% & 5% Increase 
Capital Projects Fund    Increase of $400,000 (flat) 
Property Valuations    Increase of 2% 
Wage increases     3%  
Open Enrollment In/Out   2% Decrease/3% Increase 
Vouchers     28% Increase  
Categorical Aid    Flat 
Declining Enrollment Exception  $0.00 
F10 Revenue     $234,000 Increase projected 
 
 
 
ATTACHEMENT(S):   
 
DPI 2022-2023 Preliminary Budget Summary  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Motion with a positive recommendation to approve the 2022-2023 preliminary budget 



Audited 

2020-21

Budget 

2021-22

Budget 

2022-23

GENERAL  FUND (FUND 10) 

Beginning Fund Balance (Account 930 000) 4,778,503.47 5,444,842.87 5,213,411.60 

Ending Fund Balance, Nonspendable (Acct. 935 000) 100,571.68 0.00 0.00 

Ending Fund Balance, Restricted (Acct. 936 000) 30,705.20 0.00 0.00 

Ending Fund Balance, Committed (Acct. 937 000) 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Ending Fund Balance, Assigned (Acct. 938 000) 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Ending Fund Balance, Unassigned (Acct. 939 000) 5,313,565.99 0.00 0.00 

TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE (ACCT. 930 000) 5,444,842.87 5,213,411.60 5,213,411.60 

REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

100 Transfers-in 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Local Sources

210 Taxes 30,378,040.45 25,200,529.00 23,497,187.00 

240 Payments for Services 400.00 0.00 0.00 

260 Non-Capital Sales 37,954.02 49,240.00 49,240.00 

270 School Activity Income 19,483.00 60,000.00 60,000.00 

280 Interest on Investments 1,332.94 2,000.00 2,000.00 

290 Other Revenue, Local Sources 580,690.37 629,800.00 665,500.00 

Subtotal Local Sources 31,017,900.78 25,941,569.00 24,273,927.00 

Other School Districts Within Wisconsin

310 Transit of Aids 0.00 0.00 0.00 

340 Payments for Services 876,205.03 819,488.00 808,332.00 

380 Medical Service Reimbursements 0.00 0.00 0.00 

390 Other Inter-district, Within Wisconsin 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Other School Districts within Wisconsin 876,205.03 819,488.00 808,332.00 

Other School Districts Outside Wisconsin

440 Payments for Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 

490 Other Inter-district, Outside Wisconsin 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Other School Districts Outside Wisconsin 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Intermediate Sources  

510 Transit of Aids 13,937.94 20,912.00 20,912.00 

530 Payments for Services from CCDEB 0.00 0.00 0.00 

540 Payments for Services from CESA 0.00 0.00 0.00 

580 Medical Services Reimbursement 0.00 0.00 0.00 

590 Other Intermediate Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Intermediate Sources 13,937.94 20,912.00 20,912.00 

State Sources  

610 State Aid -- Categorical 516,833.00 534,441.00 512,351.00 

620 State Aid -- General 10,516,956.00 13,956,394.00 16,237,773.00 

630 DPI Special Project Grants 73,789.41 26,000.00 26,000.00 

640 Payments for Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 

650 Student Achievement Guarantee in Education (SAGE Grant) 0.00 0.00 0.00 

660 Other State Revenue Through Local Units 2,772.57 2,500.00 2,500.00 

690 Other Revenue 3,133,124.95 3,285,059.00 3,307,365.00 

Subtotal State Sources 14,243,475.93 17,804,394.00 20,085,989.00 

Federal Sources  

710 Federal Aid - Categorical 0.00 0.00 0.00 

720 Impact Aid 0.00 0.00 0.00 

730 DPI Special Project Grants 128,150.69 70,000.00 70,000.00 

750 IASA Grants 88,332.40 91,318.00 91,318.00 

760 JTPA 0.00 0.00 0.00 

770 Other Federal Revenue Through Local Units 0.00 0.00 0.00 

780 Other Federal Revenue Through State 125,033.31 640,715.00 125,000.00 

790 Other Federal Revenue - Direct 0.00 0.00 0.00 

2022-2023 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 



Audited 

2020-21

Budget 

2021-22

Budget 

2022-23

2022-2023 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Subtotal Federal Sources 341,516.40 802,033.00 286,318.00 

Other Financing Sources  

850 Reorganization Settlement 0.00 0.00 0.00 

860 Compensation, Fixed Assets 5,525.45 0.00 0.00 

870 Long-Term Obligations 593,916.04 232,155.00 394,172.00 

Subtotal Other Financing Sources 599,441.49 232,155.00 394,172.00 

Other Revenues  

960 Adjustments 0.00 0.00 0.00 

970 Refund of Disbursement 84,212.59 100,000.00 80,000.00 

980 Medical Service Reimbursement 0.00 0.00 0.00 

990 Miscellaneous 37,411.64 34,000.00 22,100.00 

Subtotal Other Revenues 121,624.23 134,000.00 102,100.00 

TOTAL REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 47,214,101.80 45,754,551.00 45,971,750.00 

EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES

Instruction  

110 000  Undifferentiated Curriculum 7,067,790.91 7,264,685.00 7,473,625.55 

120 000  Regular Curriculum 10,321,910.74 10,460,479.00 10,483,593.37 

130 000  Vocational Curriculum 1,227,160.78 1,287,411.00 1,288,628.33 

140 000  Physical Curriculum 1,294,607.51 1,365,621.00 1,406,589.63 

160 000  Co-Curricular Activities 622,164.10 650,820.00 654,074.10 

170 000  Other Special Needs 987.58 3,038.00 2,800.00 

Subtotal Instruction 20,534,621.62 21,032,054.00 21,309,310.98 

Support Sources  

210 000  Pupil Services 1,748,097.80 1,723,982.00 1,775,701.46 

220 000  Instructional Staff Services 1,489,222.46 1,543,484.00 1,544,788.52 

230 000  General Administration 572,583.40 632,761.00 621,743.83 

240 000  School Building Administration 1,996,385.66 1,905,605.00 1,965,242.15 

250 000  Business Administration 7,865,752.17 8,094,726.27 8,273,568.06 

260 000  Central Services 2,040,296.93 1,664,563.00 1,524,499.89 

270 000  Insurance & Judgments 421,305.39 360,977.00 388,843.00 

280 000  Debt Services 513,389.69 501,670.00 417,216.00 

290 000  Other Support Services 450,251.51 447,931.00 401,368.93 

Subtotal Support Sources 17,097,285.01 16,875,699.27 16,912,971.84 

Non-Program Transactions  

410 000  Inter-fund Transfers 6,920,460.78 5,555,673.00 5,235,130.00 

430 000  Instructional Service Payments 1,994,246.78 2,496,556.00 2,488,337.18 

450 000  Post-Secondary Scholarship Expenditures 0.00 26,000.00 26,000.00 

490 000  Other Non-Program Transactions 1,148.21 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Non-Program Transactions 8,915,855.77 8,078,229.00 7,749,467.18 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES 46,547,762.40 45,985,982.27 45,971,750.00 

SPECIAL PROJECT FUNDS (FUNDS 21, 23, 29)    

900 000 Beginning Fund Balance 32,364.68 457,666.59 457,666.59 

900 000 Ending Fund Balance 457,666.59 457,666.59 457,666.59 

REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 595,553.59 65,000.00 65,000.00 

100 000 Instruction 160,930.48 65,000.00 65,000.00 

200 000 Support Services 5,321.20 0.00 0.00 

400 000 Non-Program Transactions 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 

TOTAL EXPENDTURES & OTHER FINANCING USES 170,251.68 65,000.00 65,000.00 



Audited 

2020-21

Budget 

2021-22

Budget 

2022-23

2022-2023 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

SPECIAL EDUCATION FUND (FUND 27) 
Audited 

2020-21

Budget 

2021-22

Budget 

2022-23

900 000 Beginning Fund Balance 0.00 0.00 0.00 

900 000 Ending Fund Balance 0.00 0.00 0.00 

REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

100 Transfers-in 5,089,734.30 5,555,673.00 5,235,130.00 

Local Sources

240 Payments for Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 

260 Non-Capital Sales 0.00 0.00 0.00 

270 School Activity Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 

290 Other Revenue, Local Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Local Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Other School Districts Within Wisconsin

310 Transit of Aids 0.00 0.00 0.00 

340 Payments for Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 

380 Medical Service Reimbursements 0.00 0.00 0.00 

390 Other Inter-district, Within Wisconsin 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Other School Districts within Wisconsin 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Other School Districts Outside Wisconsin

440 Payments for Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 

490 Other Inter-district, Outside Wisconsin 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Other School Districts Outside Wisconsin 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Intermediate Sources  

510 Transit of Aids 7,799.54 0.00 0.00 

530 Payments for Services from CCDEB 0.00 0.00 0.00 

540 Payments for Services from CESA 0.00 0.00 0.00 

580 Medical Services Reimbursement 0.00 0.00 0.00 

590 Other Intermediate Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Intermediate Sources 7,799.54 0.00 0.00 

State Sources  

610 State Aid -- Categorical 2,181,565.00 2,118,129.00 2,259,291.00 

620 State Aid -- General 20,891.00 48,500.00 48,500.00 

630 DPI Special Project Grants 0.00 0.00 

640 Payments for Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 

650 Achievement Gap Reduction (AGR grant) 0.00 0.00 0.00 

690 Other Revenue 23,000.00 19,000.00 19,000.00 

Subtotal State Sources 2,225,456.00 2,185,629.00 2,326,791.00 

Federal Sources  

710 Federal Aid - Categorical 0.00 0.00 0.00 

730 DPI Special Project Grants 939,649.05 826,478.00 826,478.00 

750 IASA Grants 0.00 0.00 0.00 

760 JTPA 0.00 0.00 0.00 

770 Other Federal Revenue Through Local Units 0.00 0.00 0.00 

780 Other Federal Revenue Through State 62,544.03 25,000.00 50,000.00 

790 Other Federal Revenue - Direct 0.00 0.00 600.00 

Subtotal Federal Sources 1,002,193.08 851,478.00 877,078.00 

Other Financing Sources 0.00 0.00 

860 Compensation, Fixed Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 

870 Long-Term Obligations 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Other Financing Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Other Revenues  

960 Adjustments 0.00 0.00 0.00 

970 Refund of Disbursement 0.00 0.00 0.00 

990 Miscellaneous 60.00 0.00 0.00 



Audited 

2020-21

Budget 

2021-22

Budget 

2022-23

2022-2023 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Subtotal Other Revenues 60.00 0.00 0.00 

TOTAL REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 8,325,242.92 8,592,780.00 8,438,999.00 

EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES

Instruction  

110 000  Undifferentiated Curriculum 0.00 0.00 0.00 

120 000  Regular Curriculum 0.00 0.00 0.00 

130 000  Vocational Curriculum 0.00 0.00 0.00 

140 000  Physical Curriculum 0.00 0.00 0.00 

150 000 Special Education Curriculum 6,263,451.02 6,475,478.00 6,488,098.00 

160 000  Co-Curricular Activities 0.00 0.00 0.00 

170 000  Other Special Needs 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Instruction 6,263,451.02 6,475,478.00 6,488,098.00 

Support Sources  

210 000  Pupil Services 830,294.70 889,165.00 829,165.00 

220 000  Instructional Staff Services 370,912.16 364,413.00 375,413.00 

230 000  General Administration 4,353.50 10,000.00 6,000.00 

240 000  School Building Administration 0.00 0.00 0.00 

250 000  Business Administration 317,321.70 348,200.00 295,380.00 

260 000  Central Services 2,918.78 3,500.00 3,500.00 

270 000  Insurance & Judgments 0.00 0.00 0.00 

280 000  Debt Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 

290 000  Other Support Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Support Sources 1,525,800.84 1,615,278.00 1,509,458.00 

Non-Program Transactions  

410 000  Inter-fund Transfers 0.00 0.00 0.00 

430 000  Instructional Service Payments 526,532.41 490,024.00 431,443.00 

490 000  Other Non-Program Transactions 9,458.65 12,000.00 10,000.00 

Subtotal Non-Program Transactions 535,991.06 502,024.00 441,443.00 

TOTAL EXPENDTURES & OTHER FINANCING USES 8,325,242.92 8,592,780.00 8,438,999.00 

DEBT SERVICE FUND (FUNDS 38, 39)    

900 000  Beginning Fund Balance 981,497.34 1,750,502.07 6,229,350.07 

900 000  ENDING FUND BALANCES 1,750,502.07 6,229,350.07 14,541,286.07 

TOTAL REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 9,193,037.18 11,762,441.00 10,957,016.00 

281 000  Long-Term Capital Debt 7,891,592.45 7,283,593.00 2,645,080.00 

282 000  Refinancing 0.00 0.00 0.00 

283 000  Operational Debt 0.00 0.00 0.00 

285 000  Post Employment Benefit Debt 0.00 0.00 0.00 

289 000  Other Long-Term General Obligation Debt 532,440.00 0.00 0.00 

400 000  Non-Program Transactions 0.00 0.00 0.00 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES 8,424,032.45 7,283,593.00 2,645,080.00 

842 000 INDEBTEDNESS, END OF YEAR 0.00 0.00 0.00 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND (FUNDS 41, 46, 48, 49)    

900 000  Beginning Fund Balance 298,217.97 1.00 101.00 

900 000  Ending Fund Balance 1.00 101.00 201.00 

TOTAL REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 78.54 400,100.00 400,100.00 

100 000 Instructional Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 

200 000 Support Services 214,406.70 400,000.00 400,000.00 

300 000 Community Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 

400 000 Non-Program Transactions 83,888.81 0.00 0.00 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES 298,295.51 400,000.00 400,000.00 



Audited 

2020-21

Budget 

2021-22

Budget 

2022-23

2022-2023 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

FOOD SERVICE FUND (FUND 50)    

900 000  Beginning Fund Balance 303,957.07 356,630.39 1,100,852.39 

900 000  ENDING FUND BALANCE 356,630.39 1,100,852.39 1,676,932.39 

TOTAL REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 1,100,758.61 2,005,736.00 1,442,280.00 

200 000 Support Services 1,048,085.29 1,261,514.00 866,200.00 

400 000 Non-Program Transactions 0.00 0.00 0.00 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES 1,048,085.29 1,261,514.00 866,200.00 

COMMUNITY SERVICE FUND (FUND 80)    

900 000  Beginning Fund Balance 150,043.44 227,956.16 200,956.16 

900 000  ENDING FUND BALANCE 227,956.16 200,956.16 172,216.16 

TOTAL REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 239,111.69 222,000.00 222,000.00 

200 000 Support Services 18,558.21 31,100.00 31,600.00 

300 000 Community Services 142,640.76 217,900.00 219,140.00 

400 000 Non-Program Transactions 0.00 0.00 0.00 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES 161,198.97 249,000.00 250,740.00 



 

GERMANTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

TO:   Board of Education TOPIC: Food and Nutrition Vehicle Purchase   

FROM:  Brittany Heaney, Food and Nutrition BOE MEETING:  July 18, 2022 

 Brittany Altendorf, Dir of Finance 

    

DATE:  July 11, 2022 AGENDA ITEM: VII. C. 

 

BACKGROUND:  The Food and Nutrition Department currently has a 2017 Chevrolet 4500 Box 
truck with a 18' body. It is under a 5-year lease with Selig Leasing Company, Inc with an 
expiration of 11/1/22 for 65,000 miles. We currently have 45,000 miles on the truck and a few 
damages that need repairs that are not covered under warranty. Some of the repairs needed 
are a parking brake, ABS pump, air conditioning, new lift gate installed, and new tires. We have 
received a quote for the ABS pump and parking brake for $6,134.02. A set of 6 new tires from 
Napa Auto parts would be approximately $2,700 (not installed) and a new lift gate could be as 
much as $7,800.  We have not priced out the air conditioning yet, but that would also 
need repair. If we were to keep the current vehicle at the end of the lease it would cost $26,000. 
With the cost of the vehicle and most of the repairs, we are looking at at least $42,643 for a 
2017 vehicle. The 2017 truck is also much larger than we need with a 18' body and many of our 
transport carts have had to be adjusted because the clearance on the back of the truck is not 
large enough.  

We have reached out to 5 dealers, Holz motors, 5 Corners, Ewald, Lynch, and Selig, for a new 
truck and we finally have one that meets our specifications. It has been extremely challenging to 
find a vehicle in today's market and it sounds like it may be even harder next year.  
 
The dealer that we have found success with is Lynch Truck Center in Waterford, WI. We have 
attached our original specs and their proposal/quote for the 2022 Chevrolet Van with 14' 
Cargoport Body and Liftgate. The vehicle is in production and the body and liftgate are 
produced and ready to go. They have given us an estimated build completion date of 10/15/22. 
Our lease on the current truck from Selig is up as of the end of October so the time frame is 
perfect. If we were to have to extend our lease it would have a monthly fee of at least $657.51, 
need to purchase new tires for the winter and possibly replace the parking break. These are all 
costs we are hoping to avoid.  For all of these reasons, we would like purchase a new vehicle 
from Lynch Truck Center for $51,826.  

 

ATTACHMENT:  

Quote from Lynch Truck Canter. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Motion to approve with a positive recommendation to the full Board to purchase a 2022 
Chevrolet Express Van with 14” Cargoport Body and Liftgate from Lynch Truck Center not to 
exceed $51,826.00 funded from the Food and Nutrition Budget, Fund 50. 



CUSTOMER PROPOSAL
Brittany Heaney

June 14, 2022

FOR: BY:
Brittany Heaney Brian Hackett
Germantown School District Lynch Truck Center
4143502067 262-332-6517
bheaney@gsdwi.org bhackett@lynchtruckcenter.com

VEHICLE INFORMATION
STOCK #: Rockport Pool VEHICLE DESCRIPTION:

YEAR: 2022
MAKE: Chevrolet

MODEL: Express 3500
COLOR: White

ADDITIONAL ITEMS: Rockport Cargoport Custom
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PURCHASE INFORMATION
MSRP: 59,838.00$             NOTES:

DISCOUNT: (8,600.00)$              
SALE PRICE:* 51,238.00$             

DOWNPAYMENT: -$                         
TRADE: -$                         

BALANCE DUE ON TRADE: -$                         
TAX/TITLE/LICENSE/FEES: 588.00$                  

FINAL PRICE:** 51,826.00$            

2022 Chevrolet Express Van with 14' Cargoport Body and Liftgate

 *Sale Price includes applicable incentives and discounts, but may not include all tax, title, license and fees.**Price is valid through 01/00/1900

29000 Sharon Lane  •  Waterford, WI 53185  •  Phone: 262.514.4000  •  Fax: 262.514.5000  •  lynchtruckcenter.com

Picture is for reference only. Price and fees to be verified by our 
business department. 



GERMANTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

TO: Board of Education     TOPIC: 2022-2023 District Copy Paper Purchase 

 

FROM: Brittany Altendorf    BOE MEETING: July 18, 2022 

  Director of Finance and Auxiliary Services 

 

DATE: July 11, 2022     AGENDA ITEM:  VII. D.  

 

 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Earlier this month the business office reached out to four vendors for pricing on white and color 

copy paper.  Currently the district needs to order both white and color paper prior to the start of 

the school year.  As of June 30, 2022, the district’s on-hand inventory consists of 240 cases of 

white, 27 cases of gold and 13 cases of buff.  

In years prior to 2021-22 the district-level ordering has included buff, gold, pink, green, blue, 

canary in addition to white.  During 2021-22 obtaining white and colored copy paper was 

challenging due to the supply chain issues with the trucking industry and the paper mill industry.  

The district felt the impact as paper mills were not producing paper at levels we became 

accustom to pre-pandemic.  Due to backorders, mill delays, and trucking delays, paper was not 

readily available and the paper that was available was in smaller quantities at a much higher 

cost.  At the start of the 2021-22 school year the district was able to purchase white paper but 

color paper was not able to be purchased and staff usage of color came from the paper 

inventory remaining from the prior year 2020-21.  Although an unpopular decision for some, 

most staff adjusted and came up with alternative solutions.  

Current initial feedback from the four vendors indicate the current market conditions are 

consistent with the experience this past year with diminished in-stock quantities, backorders, 

mill delays and trucking delays.  There is no longer is a cost savings (or purchasing power) in 

ordering a truckload of paper because the vendor does not have enough paper in-stock and 

immediately available.  Depending on vendor, it requires weeks to months to fulfill these 

quantities.  Currently, estimates for white and color paper ranges between $42.25 - $44.50 per 

case and $55.00 - $60.00, respectively.   

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

 

None 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

A motion to approve with a positive recommendation to order white and color paper for the 

district at the best price in the quantity available throughout the 2022-23 school year as needed 

not to exceed the 2021-22 budget of $34,412.00   

 



GERMANTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

TO: Board of Education TOPIC:    USI / Self-Funded Insurance 

 

FROM:  Michael Nowak BOARD MEETING: July 18, 2022 

   

DATE: July 13, 2022 AGENDA ITEM:    VIII. B.  

 

 

USI is presenting information to the Insurance Committee regarding a possible transition to self-

funded insurance in the Germantown School District for the 2023 plan year.   

Recommendation:  Approve the transition to self-funded insurance in the Germantown School 

District beginning January 1, 2023. 

 
 

 



 

GERMANTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

TO: Board of Education     TOPIC: Student/Co-Curricular        

                                                                                                           Handbook 

 

FROM: Chris Reuter      BOARD MEETING: July 18, 2022 

 

DATE: July 11th, 2022      AGENDA ITEM:  IX. A  

 

BACKGROUND: 

Annually, the building level administrators review policies and procedures outlined in their 

student handbooks at each of the three levels of education within Germantown School District.  

The district athletic director reviews the co-curricular handbook at middle and high school.  

Within the attachments, you will find copies of the elementary, middle, and high school student 

handbooks and the middle and high school co-curricular handbooks.  Each handbook is 

previewed with an overview of changes, eliminations, or modifications to the said handbook. All 

students, athletes, and activities participants must sign off on the review of these handbooks 

before the start of school and the season/event.  The administration is looking for approval of all 

handbooks found within this report.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

● Germantown High School  Student Handbook and addendums 

● Germantown High School Co-Curricular Handbook and addendums 

● Kennedy Middle School Student Handbook and addendums 

● Kennedy Middle School Co-Curricular Handbook and addendums 

● Germantown School District Elementary Student Handbook and addendums 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the 2022-2023 Germantown School District Student 

Handbooks and Co-Curricular Handbook addendums.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

GERMANTOWN HIGH SCHOOL 

 

CLICK HERE For the 2021-2022 Germantown High School Student Handbook 

 

CLICK HERE for the Revised 2022-2023 Germantown High School Handbook 

 

Germantown High School 

2022-23 Student Handbook Addendum 

 

● Page 32- “School Dances” 

○ Currently states: “A guest of a Germantown High School student may not be 

younger than 9th grade or older than 19 years of age and must have an ID with 

them to enter the event”  

■ Replace with: “A guest of a Germantown High School student must be a 

high school student and have an ID with them to enter the event.” 

● Why: Our top priority is safety, and we feel the best way to ensure 

our students' safety is to ensure that all attendees are of an 

appropriate age. 

 

● Pages 45-46- “Meal Program Overview and Charge Policy 

○ Under Lunch Program  

■ Bullet 3- bold the lettering for “prepaid” to draw attention to this fact for 

families 

○ Why: We feel it is important to emphasize “Prepaid” to help 

families avoid a negative balance. 

 

○ Under Low & Negative Balances/Unpaid Meal Charges  

■ Bullet 4 currently states: “If your account has a negative balance and your 

child wishes to eat lunch, you must deposit money in your account to 

cover the amount due plus the cost of meals.” 

■ Bullet 5 currently states: “If your balance is negative and your child 

wishes to take lunch without paying the negative balance, you must send 

enough money to cover the cost of the meal.” 

■ Bullet 6 currently states: “If your balance is negative and your child does 

not bring money for lunch that day, he/she will be offered a cheese 

sandwich for $0.50, baby carrots for $0.10, and a milk for $0.40, and your 

account will be charged.” 

● Change: Baby carrots will now cost $0.20 

■ Combine Bullets 4 & 6; remove bullet 5 

● Will now say: If your account has a negative balance and your 

child wishes to eat lunch, you must deposit money in your account 

to cover the amount due plus the cost of the meals. If your child 

does not bring money for lunch that day, he/she will be offered a 

https://core-docs.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/asset/uploaded_file/1220820/2021-2022_GHS_Handbook.pdf
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1SvrwsldF3_ntfVZyFnvHnfp-Xmsol9Wr/view?usp=sharing


 

cheese sandwich for $0.50, baby carrots for $0.20, and milk for 

$0.40, and your account will be charged.” 

○ Why: Current bullet points contradict each other. This will 

clarify questions and provide more specific information to 

families. 

 

● The last sentence of Use and Possession of Electronic Communication Devices on page 

34 says: "Procedurally, the process for a cell phone violation is as follows:" 

○ Change “cell phone” to “electronic communication device.” 

■ Why: “Electronic communication device” encompasses more than just cell 

phones 

 

● Add Smartwatches to the list of personal electronic hardware in the Internet Access 

section on page 50 

■ Why: Many of our students have smartwatches, and these should be 

included in our policy. 

● On Page 52 in the Music Players/Cameras/Notebook Computers/Video Games section, 

remove “Music players, personal computers, tablets, and video game systems of any 

type” from the first sentence 

○ The first sentence lists items that are to be stored in the locker and include things 

like cell phones and earbuds. These other items are not allowed at school and 

are listed immediately after as prohibited on school property. We want to remove 

these from the first sentence to avoid contradiction. 

● On page 65, change Honor Roll Exemption to Honor Roll/Honorable Mention Exemption 

■ Why: Honor is 3.5, but we allow students with a 3.0 to get Exam 

exemptions as well. Honorable Mention is 3.0 and above. 

 

● The Co-Curricular Handbook will be linked to the Student Handbook in the Athletics and 

Activities section 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

GERMANTOWN HIGH SCHOOL 

 

CLICK HERE for the 2021-2022 Germantown High School Co-Curricular Handbook 

 

CLICK HERE for the Revised 2022-2023 Germantown Co-Curricular Handbook 

 

Germantown High School Co-Curricular Handbook  

2022-23 Addendum 

● Page 3: Adding “Asian Cultural Exchange and Ice Fishing Club” to the activity 
offerings. (They will be brought to the Board at an August BOE meeting for official 
approval) 
  

● Page 5: Adding “*The date for determining academic eligibility will be the date 
when grade reports are provided to the Activities Office.” to the standards for co-
curricular activity participation section.  This clarifies that the start date for academic 
ineligibility may not be the exact day the quarter or semester ends. 
 

● Page 5: Take the following out: If a student or parent feels that there are extenuating 
circumstances for academic ineligibility, they may appeal to the Academic 
Eligibility Review Board to be placed on academic probation. During the academic 
probationary period, which will last 15 school days, the student may participate in 
all practices and events. At the end of each week the student will be required to 
have his/her teachers sign a progress report. If the student is passing all of 
his/her classes at that time they will remain eligible. By WIAA rule a student may 
not appeal for academic probation if they have received two or more failing 
grades. (Academic Review Board has five members: Principal, Activities Director, 
a coach or advisor not of that activity, teacher, and a guidance counselor.) 

 
  

● Page 5: Adding “Should an activity/event take place on a weekend, the student 
must be in attendance at school preceding the activity/event. If any part of the day 
is unexcused, the student will be prohibited from participating in any activity.” 
under school attendance to clarify weekend participation expectations and to keep it in 
line with the general student handbook. 
  
  

● Page 11: Adding “For meetings, please follow this structure: (Student/Coach or 

Advisor; Student/Parent/Coach or Advisor; 

Student/Parent/Coach or Advisor/Activities Director)” to clarify the chain of 
command for meeting procedures for issues that come up in co-curriculars. 
  

● Page 11: Adding “Therefore, “being in the presence” of alcohol, tobacco, and/or 
drugs is a violation of the Code.” under the AODA section to clarify that being in the 
presence of alcohol, tobacco and/or drugs is still a 25% violation. 
  
  

● Taking out: When a student is charged with a violation out of season, or too near 
the end of a season to carry out a penalty which has been imposed, the 
suspension requirements may be satisfied in a subsequent sport. (The Code is 
always applied immediately- regardless of if a season is too near the end.  If it cannot 

https://core-docs.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/asset/uploaded_file/1228882/GHS_Co-Curricular_Handbook_2021-22.pdf
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1KAV__ejnKgYQ8VNKAzBH9LIr1KX0D841_xyH0AyAsdQ/edit


 

fully be administered it will carry over to the next sport/activity or if one is not currently 
doing something, it will carry to the next sports/activity) 
  

● Page 15: Appeals Process is tweaked to say the following: 
After the Code of Conduct, consequences has been applied, a student may begin 

to serve the consequences as outlined by the Activities Director. If a student 

chooses to appeal the application and/or consequences of the violation, this 

appeal must be requested, in writing, within five (5) calendar days from the date 

the Code was applied. Appeals will be heard by A Board of Review, which will be 

composed of the building principal, assistant principal or designee, a team 

coach/advisor, and one faculty member. The Activities Director will be the hearing 

officer, presenting the information that led to the application of the code, but will 

not be a voting member. If the Board of Review upholds the application of the 

Code of Conduct, the student may choose to appeal to the District Administrator 

of schools.   

  

That potential appeal must be submitted, in writing, to the District Administrator 

within five (5) calendar days of the date the notification of the determination of the 

initial appeal is sent.  The determination by the District Administrator shall be sent 

in writing within ten (10) calendar days from the date the appeal is received. The 

District Administrator’s determination is final. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

KENNEDY MIDDLE SCHOOL 

 

CLICK HERE for the 2021-2022 Kennedy Middle School Student Handbook 

 

CLICK HERE for the Revised 2022-2023 Kennedy Middle School Student Handbook 

Kennedy Middle School 

2022-23 Student Handbook Addendum 

 

● Page 18 - Currently Reads  

 

Students will be allowed to bring personal communication devices (cell phones, 

smart watches, etc.) to school with the understanding of the following 

expectations regarding their usage:  

•   All devices must be turned off and put in backpacks prior to entering their first-

hour class.  

 •  Devices can be turned back on at 2:43 p.m. each day. 

 •  Students must keep their devices in their lockers.  

 

Changes - The use of personal communication devices during the school day is prohibited 

unless expressly allowed by a staff member for a particular purpose. Cell phones must be 

turned off and placed in backpacks/lockers before entering the building. Smartwatches (i.e., 

Apple watch, GizmoWatch, Garmin, etc.) are considered personal communication devices if 

they 

have cellular or wifi connectivity. Cellular or wifi connectivity on smartwatches must be 

disabled during school hours if the student wishes to wear the watch during the school 

day. Students should use the classroom or office phones if they need to communicate with 

someone outside the building during the day. Using a cell phone or smartwatch will be subject 

to the consequences listed below.  

 

 

Why - This description accurately defines the expectations around cell phones and 

smartwatches at our school.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://core-docs.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/asset/uploaded_file/1484713/KMS_Handbook_2021-22.pdf
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1yRxrZb1RcoBbpCcb8rY2DKWI3CB_waPb/view?usp=sharing


 

KENNEDY MIDDLE SCHOOL 

 

CLICK HERE for the 2021-2022 Kennedy Middle School Co-Curricular Handbook 

 

CLICK HERE for the Revised 2022-2023 Kennedy Middle School Co-Curricular Handbook 

 

Kennedy Middle Co-Curricular Handbook  

2022-23 Addendum 

● Adding “Should an activity/event take place on a weekend, the student must be in 
attendance at school preceding the activity/event. If any part of the day is 
unexcused, the student will be prohibited from participating in any activity.” under 
school attendance to clarify weekend participation expectations and to keep it in 
line with the general student handbook. 
  

● Adding “For meetings, please follow this structure: (Student/Coach or Advisor; 
Student/Parent/Coach or Advisor; 
Student/Parent/Coach or Advisor/Activities Director)” to clarify the chain of 
command for meeting procedures for issues that come up in co-curricular. 
  

● Adding “Therefore, “being in the presence” of alcohol, tobacco, and/or drugs is a 
violation of the Code.” under the AODA section to clarify that being in the 
presence of alcohol, tobacco, and/or drugs is still a 25% violation. 
  
  

● Taking out: When a student is charged with a violation out of season, or too near 
the end of a season to carry out a penalty which has been imposed, the 
suspension requirements may be satisfied in a subsequent sport. (The Code is 
always applied immediately- regardless of if a season is too near the end.  If it 
cannot fully be administered it will carry over to the next sport/activity or if one is 
not currently doing something, it will carry to the next sports/activity) 
  

● Page 15: Appeals Process is tweaked to say the following: 
After the Code of Conduct consequences have been applied, a student may begin 

to serve the consequences as outlined by the Activities Director. If a student 

chooses to appeal the application and/or consequences of the violation, this 

appeal must be requested, in writing, within five (5) calendar days from the date 

the Code was applied. Appeals will be heard by A Board of Review, which will be 

composed of the building principal, assistant principal or designee, a team 

coach/advisor, and one faculty member. The Activities Director will be the hearing 

officer, presenting the information that led to the application of the code, but will 

not be a voting member. If the Board of Review upholds the application of the 

Code of Conduct, the student may choose to appeal to the District Administrator 

of schools.   

  

That potential appeal must be submitted, in writing, to the District Administrator 

within five (5) calendar days of the date, the notification of the determination of 

the initial appeal is sent.  The determination by the District Administrator shall be 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bw6tzfNcKmrulVxcsEU5fCCyL708iDkR__3tdD8CRl0/edit


 

sent in writing within ten (10) calendar days from the date the appeal is received. 

The District Administrator’s determination is final. 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AMY BELLE, COUNTY LINE, MACARTHUR, and ROCKFIELD ELEMENTARY 

 

CLICK HERE for the 2021-2022 GSD Elementary School Student Handbook 

 

CLICK HERE for the Revised 2022-2023 GSD Elementary School Student Handbook 

 

GSD Elementary School 

2022-23 Student Handbook Addendum 

 

● pg 8 - General Admission: Omit sentence "During the summer months...."  We are 

asking families to go to the buildings during the summer now. 

 

● pg 8 - Enrollment for 4K and Kindergarten:  Add verbiage for 4K  " Children 

entering 4K must be four (4) years old, and children entering 5K must be five (5) 

years old on or before Sept 1st......" 

 

● pg 12 - Personal Communication Devices:  I think we need to add something else 

here.  The handbook refers to the policy and the policy refers to the handbook 

when it comes to using PCDs during the school day.  At KMS their school policy 

is that "All devices must be turned off and placed in backpacks prior to entering 

the building."  With the increasing popularity of smartwatches we have students 

texting and phoning their parents throughout the school day.   

● "The use of personal communication devices during the school day is 

prohibited unless expressly allowed by a staff member for a special purpose.  

Cell phones must be turned off and placed in backpacks prior to entering the 

building.  Smartwatches, such as an Apple watch, Gizmowatch, Garmin, etc, are 

considered personal communication devices if they have cellular or wifi 

connectivity.  Cellular or wifi connectivity on smartwatches must be disabled 

during school hours if the student wishes to wear the watch during the school 

day.  Students should use the classroom or office phones if they need to 

communicate with someone outside the building during the day." 

 

● p.15- Inclement Weather  for the sentence after the bullets change to/adjust to say, 

"Children will be allowed to enter the building immediately upon arrival. 

Additionally, recess will be held indoors if inclement weather is declared." 

 

● p. 16- Visitors  (replace the first sentence with this) All visitors are required to sign 

in and obtain a visitor badge in the office upon entering the building during school 

https://core-docs.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/asset/uploaded_file/1481100/Elementary_Handbook_2021-22.pdf
https://drive.google.com/file/d/11OcpxW_D0Msg6HLvKYz2uQMZ8uRarrVJ/view?usp=sharing


 

hours. This will include an electronic background screening, therefore a valid 

state ID must be presented.  

● p.15 of the handbook as well. 

Volunteers 

A background check needs to be processed prior to volunteering in a classroom 

or attending a field experience with your child’s class. To apply as a volunteer, the 

District Volunteer Application must be completed. Upon approval, the first time 

you volunteer, your valid state ID must be presented to complete the process. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://apps.raptortech.com/Apply/OTE3OmVuLVVT
https://apps.raptortech.com/Apply/OTE3OmVuLVVT
https://apps.raptortech.com/Apply/OTE3OmVuLVVT


GERMANTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

TO: Germantown Board of Education                         TOPIC: Revised 2022-2023 BOE Meeting Schedule 

 

FROM: Chris Reuter           BOARD MEETING: July 17, 2022 

 

DATE:  July 11th, 2022           AGENDA ITEM:  IX. B.  

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Each fall the district holds an Annual Meeting and Budget Hearing in the fall.  In past years these 

meetings have taken place in September.  Until October 15th there are many unknowns, such as student 

enrollment, state aid allocations, voucher amounts, etc.  To have the most accurate information for the 

board presentation and the community voting, Brittany Altendorf, Director of Business and Auxiliary 

Services, is asking to move the Annual Meeting and Budget Hearing to October 24, 2022. This change 

would still fall in line with DPI’s timeline to approve the levy by October 31st annually.    

 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to approve the revision of the Germantown School District Board of 

Education Meeting Schedule to reflect the Annual Meeting for the 2022-2023 school year to take place on 

October 24th, 2022.  

 



GERMANTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

TO: Board of Education   TOPIC: Resolution Regarding  

                                     School Safety 

 

FROM: Chris Reuter      BOARD MEETING: July 18, 2022 

 

DATE: July 11th, 2022      AGENDA ITEM:  VII. C.  

 

 

 

See below. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Motion to approve the resolution as presented. 

 



Germantown School District 

 

A RESOLUTION of the Germantown Board of Education requesting immediate changes to 
Wisconsin statues and funding of K-12 education to increase school safety. 

WHEREAS, during the June 27, 2022 Germantown Board of Education meeting Board of 
Education Director Robert Soderberg requested more security steps be considered to “ensure 
our kids and teachers go home safe”; and 

WHEREAS, The Germantown Board of Education values our ongoing relationship with 
the Germantown Police Department and the Washington County Sheriff’s department and their 
continued efforts to keep our buildings safe and secure; and 

WHEREAS, the right to bear arms is defined and protected by the Constitution of the 
United States and the 2nd Amendment of the Bill of Rights, and; 

WHEREAS, the Gun-Free School Zones Act of 1990 allows possession of a firearm on 
school grounds if authorized by the state; and; 

WHEREAS, The Wisconsin State Legislature, signed by Governor Scott Walker, enacted 
2011 Wisconsin Act 35 on July 8, 2011, a statue that allows most adults to lawfully carry a 
concealed firearm in Wisconsin after November 1, 2011, if they obtain a “concealed carry” 
license, and 

WHEREAS, 2011 Wisconsin Act 35 failed to contain the necessary language authorizing a 
license holder to possess a firearm on school grounds; and 

WHEREAS, losing one life at a school shooting is too many; and 

WHEREAS, criminals do not follow laws, including gun laws; and 

WHEREAS, the “gun free school zone” signs do nothing but notify a criminal that there 
will be few, if any, people in the building that can defend themselves; and 

WHEREAS, a sign stating “STAFF IS ARMED AND TRAINED TO USE DEADLY FORCE” sends 
a message that the school will not be an easy target; and 

WHEREAS, Soft on crime District Attorneys and Judges around the state set ridiculously 
low bail and weak sentences, which directly lead to the massacre that occurred at the 2021 
Waukesha Christmas Parade.  

WHEREAS, the CDC data found that “1 in 5 children had a mental disorder, but only 
about 20% of those children received care from a mental health provider”1; and  

WHEREAS, the Germantown Board of Education believes in local control, 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Germantown Board of Education requests that the 
state of Wisconsin provide mobile weapon detection systems similar to what is used at 
professional sporting events; and 



1 Source: https://www.apa.org/monitor/2022/01/special-childrens-mental-health 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Germantown Board of Education requests the State of 
Wisconsin provide and fund mental health services and tools for students which may include 
smartphone apps; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Germantown Board of Education requests the State of 
Wisconsin create laws that mandate high bail and strong sentences for violent offenders; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Germantown Board of Education requests the State of 
Wisconsin provide advanced defense and firearm training to all school staff that wish to attend; 
and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOVLED, that the State of Wisconsin provide adequate funding for 
Germantown School District to implement school security aids as allowed per HR218; and 
finally 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Germantown Board of Education requests that Wisconsin 
Concealed Carry Weapon statues be amended to allow a license holder to possess a firearm on 
school grounds and within school buildings if authorized by the local school district. 

 

Adopted this _____ day of _____, 2022 

By a vote of: _____ in favor, ____ opposed, and ______ abstain 
 

    BY: ____________________________ (School Board Clerk) 
                  Thomas Barney 



GERMANTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

TO: Board of Education TOPIC:    Resignations 

 

FROM:  Michael Nowak BOARD MEETING: July 18, 2022 

    

DATE: July 14, 2022 AGENDA ITEM:    IX. D.  

 

 

 

Ashley Rusch has submitted a letter of resignation effective June 27, 2022.  Ashley was hired in 

August of 2018 as a Special Education Teacher at County Line Elementary School.  In addition, 

Kristen Dhein submitted a letter of resignation effective July 15, 2022.  Kristen was hired in 

August of 2012 as an Eighth Grade Teacher at Kennedy Middle School   Last year she served as 

a Fourth Grade Teacher at Rockfield Elementary School.  Finally, Jocelyn Ritger is resigning 

from her regular contract at Rockfield effective June 10, 2022E to take part of a job share at 

Rockfield Elementary School. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   Approve the resignations of Ashley Rusch, Kristen Dhein and 

Jocelyn Ritger and thank them for their years of service to the 

students, their families and to the Germantown School District.  

Approve posting and filling the vacancies. 

 

 

 

 

 
**Teacher contract:  “In the event said Teacher with a signed contract for the ensuing year seeks release to accept 
other employment after July 1, he/she shall forfeit five hundred dollars ($500), after August 1, he/she shall forfeit 
seven hundred fifty dollars ($750), and after August 15, he/she shall forfeit one thousand dollars ($1,000) as 
liquidated damages.” 

 

 

  

 
 



GERMANTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

 

TO: Board of Education TOPIC:    Teacher Contracts 

 

FROM:  Michael Nowak BOARD MEETING: July 18, 2022 

    

DATE: July 12, 2022 AGENDA ITEM:    IX. E.  

 

The administration is recommending the approval of the following regular and part-time contracts 

for the 2022-23 school year. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:    

Approve the .5  FTE part-time contract for Rachel Stallings at 

$33,250, the .5 FTE part-time contract for Alison Pitrof at $28,650, 

the .5 FTE part-time contract for Jocelyn Ritger a t$24,244, and the 

1.0 FTE regular contract for Carissa Frank at $65,000  
 

 

Employee Assignment/Location Rationale FTE Contract Type Salary  

Rachel Stallings 

 4-K Kindergarten Teacher 

Amy Belle Elementary School 

Rachel is being recommended for 

this position as a result of staffing 

needs  
.5 Part-Time $33,250 

Alison Pitrof 

First Grade Teacher  

Rockfield Elementary School 

Alison is being recommended for 

the position as part of a job share. .5 Part-Time $28,650 

Jocelyn Ritger 

First Grade Teacher 

Rockfield Elementary School 

 

Jocelyn is being recommended for 

the position as part of a job share 
.5 Part-Time $24,244 

Carissa Frank 

Kindergarten Teacher 

County Line Elementary School 

Carissa is being recommended for 

this position as the result of teacher 

resignation 
1.0  Regular  $65,000 



GERMANTOWN SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

TO: Board of Education     TOPIC: Donations 

 

FROM: Chris Reuter      BOARD MEETING: July 18, 2022 

 

DATE: July 11th, 2022      AGENDA ITEM:  IX. F.   

 

 

 

Please act on the donation request described below. 

 

The Board of Education should consider acceptance of the donation in accordance with Board 

Policy 7230 - Gifts, Grants, and Bequests. 

 

Approve the following donations: 

 

The Rockfield PTA secured the donation of $18,000 to purchase SMART TVs and the wall 

mounts. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Thank the donors for their generosity and approve the donations as 

listed.  

 


